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Date: May 29, 2013 f&?@éc‘hg;«

To:  Mayor and City Council
Lloyd Martley, Interim City Administrator

From: Corey Swisher, City Clerk/Finance Director

Re: 2012 Independent Audit Review —~ Mize, Houser & Company, P.A.

Background:

K.S.A 75-1122 requires municipalities to have annual audits by licensed municipal public
accountants or certified public accountants if the municipality has annual gross receipts over
$275,000 or has bonds outstanding of over $275,000. The City of Basehor meets both of these
criteria.  Subsequently, the City engaged Mize, Houser & Company, P.A. to perform an
independent external audit.

For the fourth year in a row the City has received an unqualified audit opinion.

An opinion is said to be unqualified when the auditor concludes that the financial statements give
a true and fair representation in accordance with the financial reporting framework used for the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements. An auditor gives an unqualified or clean
opinion when they do not have any significant reservations in respect to matters contained in the
financial statements. This type of report is issued by an auditor when the financial statements
presented are free of material misstatements and are represented fairly in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which means the City’s financial condition,
position, and operations are fairly presented in the financial statements.

An unqualified audit is the best type of report a municipality is able to receive from an external
auditor.

An unqualified opinion indicates the following:

(1) The Financial Statements have been prepared using GAAP which have been consistently
applied;

(2) The Financial Statements comply with relevant statutory requirements and regulations;

(3) There is adequate disclosure of all material matters relevant to the proper presentation of the
financial information subject to statutory requirements, where applicable;




(4) Any changes in the accounting principles or in the method of their application and the effects
thereof have been properly determined and disclosed in the financial statements.

Staff Recommendation:

Move the FY 2012 independent external audit approval to the June 17" Consent Agenda.
Action Requested of City Council:

Move the FY 2012 independent external audit approval to the June 17" Consent Agenda.
Attachments:

FY 2012 Independent External Audit




MIZE _HOUSER
CJOMPANY:a

AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Mayor and City Council
City of Basehor, Kansas

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Basehor, Kansas for the year ended December 31, 2012,
and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we provide you with
the following information related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated, October 15, 2012, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and to express an opinion about whether the financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
areas to be tested.

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. We will communicate our significant
findings at the conclusion of the audit.

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our meeting
about planning matters on December 20, 2012.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City of Basehor, Kansas are described in Note 1 to
the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed for the year ended December 31, 2012. We noted no transactions entered into by the City of Basehor,
Kansas during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant
transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction
occurred.
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Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’'s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of accumulated depreciation is based on the straight-line method of depreciation. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accumulated depreciation in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Corrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We have been informed
that management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result
of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated May 13, 2013.

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a "second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consuiting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of the accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Basehor, Kansas's auditors. However, this
discussion occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to
our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the mayor, city council and management of the City of Basehor,
Kansas, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

M(;}cuow{co PA

May 13, 2013
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MIiIZE  HOUSER
CJOMPANY:a

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mayor and City Council
City of Basehor, Kansas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Basehor, Kansas, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States -of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the “Kansas Municipal
Accounting and Audit Guide.” These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Basehor, Kansas, as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 3 through 8 and the schedule of funding progress on page 43 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying account and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Basehor, Kansas financial performance provides an overview of the City's
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012,

Financial Highlights

e The Government-wide net position totaled $16.1 million at the end of the current fiscal year.

e The Government-wide unrestricted current assets exceed the current liabilities by $6.3 million, representing
the City's ability to meet its current obligations when due.

» Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2012 totaled $28.5 million.

e During the year ended December 31, 2012, the City’'s total revenues (which include charges for services,
local taxes, and state and federal aid) exceeded total expenses by $20,333.

e The City’s total indebtedness decreased by $1 million.

¢ The City's net capital assets decreased $1.4 million in the current fiscal year.

Using This Financial Report

This annual report consists of two distinct series of financial statements: government-wide and funds. In addition,
the annual report includes budgetary-basis financial statement comparisons, in accordance with the State of Kansas
cash basis and budget laws.

The government-wide statements are designed to provide information about the City's activities as a whole and
provide a longer-term view of the City’s finances. The fund financial statements tell how the City’s services for both
governmental and business-type activities were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements report the City’s operations in greater detail than the government-wide
statements by providing information about the City’'s most significant funds. In addition, combining statements
included in the supplemental information show detail of all other governmental funds.

Reporting on the City as a Whole (Government Wide)
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The view of the City as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “Are we in a better financial
position as a result of the current year's financial activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities provide the basis for answering this question. The statements include all assets and all liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting method used by most private-sector companies. This
basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses, regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and current year change in those net position. The change in
net position is important because it tells the reader whether the City, as a whole, has improved or diminished its
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. Causes of these changes may be the result of many factors, some
financial, some not. Non-financial factors include the City's property tax base, state mandates, and the financial
condition of the State of Kansas general fund.



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two distinct kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s programs and services are reported here including general government,
public safety, public works, and culture and recreation.

Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods and services basis to recover all of
the expenses of the goods or services provided. The City’s sewer utility and the solid waste utility are reported as
business-type activities.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds (Fund Financial Statements)

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City's major funds. The City uses many funds to
account for a multitude of financial transactions. The main fund financial statements focus on the City's most
significant funds. Combining fund balance sheets and statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about all of the City’s non-major governmental funds.

Governmental Funds - Most of the City’s activities are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of the funds and balances left over at fiscal yearend available to be spent in future periods.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader to decide where there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near term to finance the City’s programs. Major differences between the City’s governmental activities as reported in
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities and its governmental funds are reconciled in the
Governmental Funds financial statements.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds (Solid Waste Utility and the Sewer Utility) are enterprise funds that use the
same basis of accounting as business-type activities, therefore, these statements replicate the information provided
in the government-wide financial statements.



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

The City as a Whole
Government-Wide Position
The Statement of Net Position provides the financial position of the City as a whole. The following is a summary of
the City’'s Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2012;
City of Basehor
Condensed Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current assets $ 6761551 § 6308209 $ 999,104 $ 904,810 $§ 7,760655 $ 7,213,019
Net capital assets 10,473,260 11,106,103 18,070,308 18,838,629 28,543,568 29,944,732
Total assets $ 17234811 $ 17,414,312 $ 19,069412 $ 19743439 $ 36,304,223 § 37,157,751
Current liabilities $ 2064516 $ 1,964,073 $ 875,639 % 958,955 $ 2,940,155 $ 2,923,028
Noncurrent liabilities 7,629,461 7,997,118 9,658,113 10,181,444 17,287,574 18,178,562
Total liabilities $ 9693977 $ 9,961,191 $ 10,633,752 $ 11,140,399 $ 20,227,729 $ 21,101,590

Net Position:

Invested in capital assets, $ 2474893 $ 2842681 $ 7,689,150 $ 7,816,878 $ 10,164,043 $ 10,659,559
net of debt

Restricted for:

Debt Service 659,198 404,894 - - 659,198 404,894
Unrestricted 4,406,743 4,205,546 846,510 786,162 5,253,253 4,991,708
Total net position $ 7540834 § 7453121 § 8535660 § 8603040 §$ 16,076,494 $ 16,056,161

The assets of the City are classified as current assets and capital assets. Cash and investments and accounts
receivable are the largest current assets. These are assets that are available to provide resources for the near-term
operations of the City. Capital assets are used in the operations of the City. These assets include land, buildings,
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure.

Current and non-current liabilities are classified based on anticipated liquidation either in the near-term or in the
future. Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and current portion of long-term obligations.
Current assets exceed current liabilities by $6.3 million, representing the City’s ability to meet current obligations
when due.

The City has $18.4 million in long-term debt, consisting of general obligation bonds, loans, and capital leases
payable, of which $1.2 million is due within the next fiscal year.

The City had total assets at December 31, 2012, totaling $36.3 million. The total assets of the City exceeded the
total liabilittes by $16.1 million. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, totaled $10.2 million,
restricted net position totaled $.7 million and unrestricted net position totaled $5.2 million.
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

Government-Wide Activities

The following is a condensed statement of the City’s change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2012.
Major items of program revenues, grants and general revenues are detailed below. Government-wide activities
increased the net position of the City by $20,333 for the year ended December 31, 2012. A reconciliation of the total
change in fund balances for the governmental funds to the Statement of Activities is located on page 14 of the basic
financial statements. Major differences in the Statement of Activites and changes in the fund balances of
governmental funds as expenditures in the funds statements include the repayment of bonds, temporary notes, and
leases in the current fiscal year of $5.1 million which are treated as an expenditure in the fund statements and a
reduction of long term debt payable in the Government wide financial statements. Also, issuance of bonds are
recorded as revenue in the fund statements in the amount of $4.7, however this amount is recorded as an addition
to long term debt payable in the Government wide financial statements. In addition, the capital outlays of $.2 million
are treated as expenditures in the fund statements, but are treated as capital assets in the Government wide
financial statements.

City of Basehor

Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ending December 31, 2012 and 2011

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 302275 $ 252,238  $1503,236 $1,791,107  $1,805511 § 2,043,345

Operating grants 14,278 15,722 90,268 84,630 104,546 100,352
General revenues:

Taxes 3,477,067 3,524,640 - - 3,477,067 3,524,640

Transfers [net] 107,256 [18,959] [107,256] 18,959 - -

Other 58,079 61,389 121,387 812 179,466 62,201
Total revenues 3,958,955 3,835,030 1,607,635 _ 1,895,508 5,566,590 5,730,538
Program expenses:

General government 1,153,936 1,210,855 - - 1,153,936 1,210,855

Public safety 770,870 738,989 - - 770,870 738,989

Public works 696,331 534,874 - - 696,331 534,874

Culture and recreation 46,499 70,120 - - 46,499 70,120

Infrastructure depreciation 762,390 741,840 - - 762,390 741,840
Sewer utility - - 1,439,115 1,408,844 1,439,115 1,408,844
Solid waste utility - - 235,900 254,628 235,900 254,628

Interest on long term debt 441,216 242,488 - - 441,218 242 488
Total expenses 3,871,242 3,539,166 1675015 1,663,472 5,546,257 5,202,638
Increase [decrease] in net position $ 87,713 § 295864 $ [67380] § 232,036 § 20333 § 527,900
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

Governmental Activities increase the net position by $87,713. Business-type activities decreased the net position by
$67,380. The primary increases in Governmental Activities can be attributed to many factors in addition to
conservative spending. In 2012, the City issued increased building permits and experienced a positive surge in
franchise, delinguent, and sales tax collections. Key elements in the Business-type activities increase is due to
additional sewer connection fees, utility customers (both sewer and solid waste) and deferred maintenance.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with state and federal finance related legal
requirements. These funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The governmental funds of the City provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable
resources.

Total fund balances at December 31, 2012 for the governmental funds totaled $5.3 million. Total unassigned fund
balances at December 31, 2012 totaled nearly $.6 million, of which $.6 million was attributable to the General Fund.
The remainder of fund balance includes; $.7 million of restricted fund balance to indicate that constraints have been
placed on the use of resources either by being externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations; $4.0 million of assigned fund balance to indicate amounts that are constrained by the City management
to be used for specific purposes.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $.6 million, which represents all of the total fund balance. The increase in the
General Fund’s fund balance was $.2 million.

The Consolidated Highway Fund is used to account for road and highway projects. At the end of the current fiscal
year, assigned fund balance of the consolidated highway fund was $2 million, which represents all of the total fund
balance. The decrease in the fund’s fund balance was $54,709.

The Capital Improvements Reserve Fund is used to account for capital improvement projects. At the end of the
current fiscal year, assigned fund balance of the capital improvements reserve fund was $1.4 million, which
represents all of the total fund balance. The increase in the fund's fund balance was $80,271.

The Employee Benefit Fund is used to account for employee benefits. At the end of the current fiscal year, assigned
fund balance of the employee benefit fund was $135,031, which represents all of the total fund balance. The
increase in the Fund’s fund balance was $86,749.

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumulate tax revenues and other revenues for the payment of principal and
interest on general long-term debt.

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Solid Waste Utility Fund at the end of the year amounted to $104,018 and the
unrestricted net position of the Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $.7 million. The total change in the
two funds was $7,984 and [$75,364] respectively.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The City's budgets are prepared in accordance with Kansas law and are based primarily on the basis of cash
receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Unaudited

The City’s final General Fund budget was $1,867,562, the same as the original published budget. The revenues
were more than budgetary estimates by $227,705 and the expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by
$176,661.

Fixed Assets and Debt Administration

The City’s investment in fixed assets for its governmental and business-type activities totaled $28.5 million (net of
accumulated depreciation) as of December 31, 2012.

Major fixed asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

The City purchased a patrol car, smooth drum roller and box spreader at a cost of $36,832.

At December 31, 2012, the City had total debt outstanding of $18.4 million, backed by the full faith and credit of the
City. Total long-term debt decreased for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, in the amount of $1 million. This
was a result of the gradual pay down of current outstanding debt and the refinancing.

Additional information on the City’s general long term debt can be found in Note Ill to the financial statements.
Contacting the City

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. If you have questions about

this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Clerk/Finance Department at 2620 North 155"
Street, Basehor, Kansas 66007 or (913) 724-1370.



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Municipal court
Other

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Bond discount, net

Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land
Construction in process
Depreciable capital assets:

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
NET POSITION
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences payable
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable
Current portion of loans payable

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets)

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net other post employment benefit obligation
Capital lease payable
General obligation bonds payable
Loans payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Invested in fixed assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Primary Government

. Primary
Governmental Business-type  Government
Activities Activities Total
$ 5271864 $ 868,328 §$ 6,140,193

1,437,454 - 1,437,454
48,027 - 48,027
4,206 130,775 134,981

6,761,551 999,104 7,760,655

- 21,147 21,147
135,838 - 135,838
165,301 - 165,301

18,936,346 28,616,789 47,553,135

[8,764,225] [10,567,628] [19,331,853]

10,473,260 18,049,161 28,522,421

10,473,260 18,070,308 28,543,568

$ 17,234,811 $ 19,069,412 §$ 36,304,223
$ 30,026 $ 37,707 % 67,733
40,966 5,311 46,277
83,755 97,045 180,800
41,242 12,531 53,773
431,073 493,927 925,000

- 229,118 229,118

627,062 875,639 1,502,701
12,167 - 12,167
50,000 - 50,000

7,567,294 4,823,590 12,390,884

- 4,834,523 4,834,523

7,629,461 9,658,113 17,287,574

8,256,523 10,533,752 18,790,275

1,437,454 - 1,437,454

1,437,454 - 1,437,454

$ 9693977 $ 10,533,752 $ 20,227,729
$ 2474893 $ 7,689,150 $ 10,164,043
659,198 - 659,198
4,406,743 846,510 5,253,253

$ 7,540,834 $ 8,535,660 $ 16,076,494

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Infrastructure depreciation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Sewer Utility
Solid Waste Utility

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Program Revenues

Net [Expenses] Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Business
Charges for  Grants and Governmental Type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
$1,153,936 $ -3 - $ [1,153,936] $ - $ [1,153,936]
770,870 147,659 - [623,211] - [623,211]
696,331 154,616 14,278 [627,437] - [627,437]
46,499 - - [46,499] - [46,499]
762,390 - - [762,390] - [762,390]
441,216 - - [441,216] - [441,216]
3,871,242 302,275 14,278 [3,554,689] - [3,554,689]
1,439,115 1,216,584 90,268 - [132,263] [132,263]
235,900 286,652 - - 50,752 50,752
1,675,015 1,503,236 90,268 - [81,511] [81,511]
$5546257 § 1,805511 $ 104,546 [3,554,689] [81,511] [3,636,200]
General Revenues:
Property taxes levied for
General purposes 1,417,771 - 1,417,771
Debt service 828,599 - 828,599
Franchise tax 204,997 - 204,997
Liquor tax 16,964 - 16,964
Sales tax 655,056 - 655,056
Motor vehicle tax 176,856 - 176,856
Excise tax 56,280 - 56,280
Miscellaneous tax 120,544 - 120,544
Investments earnings 20,947 3,206 24,153
Miscellaneous 37,132 118,181 155,313
Transfers, net 107,256 [107,256] -
Total general revenues 3,642,402 14,131 3,656,533
Change in net position 87,713 [67,380] 20,333
Net position - beginning 7,453,121 8,603,040 16,056,161

Net position - ending

$ 7,540,834 $ 8,535660 $ 16,076,494

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables
Taxes

Municipal court

Other
Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Fund balance:
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance [deficit]

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2012

Capital
Consolidated  Improvements

General Highway Reserve
$ 606,865 $ 1,967,132 1,424,267
993,230 - -
48,027 - -
4,206 - -
$ 1652328 $ 1,967,132 1,424,267
$ 27912 § 1,556 -
37.578 - -
65,490 1,656 -
993,230 - -
993,230 - -
1,058,720 1,556 -
- 1,965,576 1,424,267
593,608 - -
593,608 1,965,576 1,424,267
$ 1652328 $ 1,967,132 1,424 267




Other Total

Employee Bond and Governmental Governmental
Benefit Interest Funds Funds

$ 138,419 § 659,198 § 475,983 § 5,271,864

372,926 71,298 - 1,437,454

- - - 48,027

- - - 4,206

$ 511345 $ 730496 $ 475,983 § 6,761,551

$ - $ -3 558 $ 30,026

3,388 - - 40,966

3,388 - 558 70,992

372,926 71,298 - 1,437,454

372,926 71,298 - 1,437,454

376,314 71,298 558 1,508,446

- 659,198 - 659,198

135,031 - 475,425 4,000,299

- - - 593,608

135,031 659,198 475,425 5,253,105

$§ 511345 $ 730486 § 475983 § 6,761,551

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
11
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
December 31, 2012

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 5,253,105

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

The cost of capital assets is 19,237,485
Accumulated depreciation is [8,764,225 10,473,260

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long term liabilities at year end consist of:

General obligation bonds payable 7,998,367

Lease payable 50,000

Net other post employment benefit obligation 12,167

Interest payable 83,755

Compensated absences payable 41,242 [8,185,531]
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7,540,834

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
12



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Capital
Consolidated Improvements
General Highway Reserve
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,579,819 § 511,192 $ 75,700
Intergovernmental - - -
Special assessments - - -
Licenses, permits and fees 79,368 - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 147,659 - -
Use of money and property 2,749 7,065 4,571
Miscellaneous 37,132 - -
Total revenues 1,846,727 518,257 80,271
EXPENDITURES:
Current
General government 674,786 48,247 -
Public works 177,306 - -
Culture and recreation 35,152 - -
Public safety 734,139 - -
Capital outlay - 524,719 -
Debt service
Principal - - -

Interest and other charges - - -

Total expenditures 1,621,383 572,966 -

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures 225,344 [54,709] 80,271

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]
Sales of bonds - - -
Bond premium - - -

Transfers in 59,753 - -
Transfers [out] [69,518] - -
Total other financing sources [uses] [9,765] - -

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
and other sources over [under]
expenditures and other [uses] 215,579 [54,709] 80,271

Fund balance - Beginning of year 378,029 2,020,285 1,343,996

Fund balance - End of year $ 593608 $ 1,965576 $ 1,424 267




Other Total
Employee Bond and Governmental Governmental
Benefit Interest Funds Funds

$ 471,731 $ 123686 § 10,026 $ 2,772,154

- 14,278 - 14,278

- 704,913 - 704,913

- - 75,248 154,616

- - - 147,659

582 2,604 3,376 20,947

- - - 37,132
472,313 845,481 88,650 3,851,699
433,066 - - 1,156,099
. - - 177,306

- - - 35,152

- - - 734,139

- - 183,829 708,548

- 1,602,122 3,460,000 5,062,122

- 333,145 70,738 403,883
433,066 1,935,267 3,714,567 8,277,249
39,247 _ [1,089,786] [3,625,917] [4,425,550]
- 1,250,000 3,410,000 4,660,000

- 44,107 92,960 137,067
47,502 49,983 19,536 176,774
- - - [69,518]
47,502 1,344,090 3,522,496 4,904,323
86,749 254,304 [103,421] 478,773
48,282 404,894 578,846 4,774,332

3 135031 § 659,198 § 475425 $ 5253105

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
13



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES WITH THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Total Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 478,773

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because

Capital outlays to purchase or build assets are reported in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are shown
in the statement of net position and allocated over their estimated useful lives
as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period.

Capital outlays 206,860
Loss on sale of asset [13,770]
Depreciation expense [825,934] [632,844]

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount

reported in the governmental funds because interest is recorded as an

expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current

financial resources. in the statement of activities, however, interest expense

is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. This is

the amount by which interest increased. [37,333]

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated absences 10,998
Net other post employment benefits [3,236]

Bond issuance costs are recorded as expenditures in the fund financial
statements. However, for the statement of net position, these costs are shown
as assets and amortized over the life of the bonds. [137,067]

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction has any effect on net position. 408,422

Changes In Net position of Governmental Activities 3 87,713

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary  Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Original Final Negative
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,579,819 % - $ 1579819 $ 1,394,477 $ 1,394477 § 185,342
Licenses and permits 79,368 14,038 93,406 66,950 66,950 26,456
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 147,659 5,899 153,558 136,782 136,782 16,776
Use of money and property 2,749 - 2,749 1,000 1,000 1,749
Miscellaneous 37,132 - 37,132 35,000 35,000 2,132
Total Revenues 1,846,727 19,937 1,866,664 1,634,209 1,634,209 232,455
Expenditures:
General Administration:
Personal services 314,576 - 314,576 413,626 413,626 99,050
Contractual services 279,372 - 279,372 341,299 341,299 61,927
Commodities 21,950 - 21,950 23,600 23,600 1,650
Capital outlay 58,888 - 58,888 31,814 31,814 [27,074]
674,786 - 674,786 810,339 810,339 135,553
Public Safety
Personal services 618,755 - 618,755 621,700 621,700 2,945
Contractual services 68,774 - 68,774 92,250 92,250 23,476
Commodities 43,413 - 43,413 47,700 47,700 4,287
Capital outlay 3,197 - 3,197 10,000 10,000 6,803
734,139 - 734,139 771,650 771,650 37,511
Highways and Streets
Personal services 160,902 - 160,902 162,000 162,000 1,098
Contractual services 3,076 - 3,076 8,900 8,800 5,824
Commodities 13,328 - 13,328 12,200 12,200 [1,128}
177,306 - 177,306 183,100 183,100 5,794
Culture and recreation
Personal services 9,433 - 9,433 8,484 8,484 [949]
Contractual services 4,331 - 4,331 8,171 8,171 3,840
Commodities 1,273 - 1,273 1,300 1,300 27
Capital outlay 20,115 - 20,115 15,000 15,000 [5,115]
35,152 - 35,152 32,855 32,955 [2,197]

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND - (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary  Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Original Final Negative
Expenditures (Continued):
Total Expenditures $ 1621383 § - $ 1621383 $ 1798044 $ 1,798,044 § 176,661
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
Over [Under] Expenditures 225,344 19,837 245,281 [163,835] [163,835] 409,116
Other Financing Sources [Uses]:
Transfers in 59,753 - 59,753 64,503 64,503 [4,750]
Transfers [out] [69,518] - [69,518] [69,518] [69,518] -
Total Other Financing Sources [Uses] [9,765] - [9,765] [5,015] [5,015] [4,750]
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
and Other Sources Over [Under]
Expenditures and Other [Uses] 215,579 19,937 235516 $ [168,850] $ [168,850] $ 404,366
Fund Balance, January 1 378,029 [72,170] 305,859
Fund Balance, December 31 3 503608 $§ [52,233] § 541,375

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
CONSOLIDATED HIGHWAY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary = Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Qriginal Final [Negative]
Revenues:
Taxes $ 511192 $ - $ 511192 $ 448210 $448210 § 62,982
Use of money and property 7,065 - 7,065 3,200 3,200 3,865
Total Revenues 518,257 - 518,257 451,410 451,410 66,847
Expenditures:
Commodities 48,114 - 48,114 - - [48,114]
Capital outlay 524,719 - 524,719 715,000 715,000 190,281
Contractual 133 - 133 - - [133]
Total Expenditures 572,966 - 572,966 715,000 715,000 142,034
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
Over [Under] Expenditures [54,709] - [54,709] $ [263,590] $[263,590] $ 208,881
Fund Balance, January 1 2,020,285 - 2,020,285
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 1965576 $ - $ 1965576

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary  Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Qriginal Final [Negative]
Revenues:

Taxes $ 75700 3 - $ 75700 $ 65000 $ 65000 3% 10,700

Use of money and property 4,571 - 4,571 1,100 1,100 3,471
Total Revenues 80,271 - 80,271 66,100 66,100 14,171
Expenditures:

Capital outlay - - - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - - - -
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues

Over [Under] Expenditures 80,271 - 80,271 $ 66100 $ 66100 $ 14,171
Fund Balance, January 1 1,343,996 - 1,343,996
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 1424267 §$ - $ 1,424,267

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

Revenues:

Taxes

Use of money and property
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Personal services
Total Expenditures

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
Over [Under] Expenditures

Other Financing Sources [Uses]:
Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources [Uses]

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
and Other Sources Over [Under]
Expenditures and Other [Uses]

Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary  Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Original Final [Negative]
$ 471,731 % - $ 471731 $ 477,787 $ 477,787 §$ [6,0586]
582 - 582 150 150 432
472,313 - 472,313 477,937 477,937 [5,624]
433,066 - 433,066 489,630 489,630 56,564
433,066 - 433,066 489,630 489,630 56,564
39,247 - 39,247 [11,693] [11,693] 50,940
47,502 - 47,502 52,253 52,253 [4,751]
47,502 - 47,502 52,253 52,253 [4,751]
86,749 - 86,749 $ 40560 $ 40560 $ 46,189
48,282 - 48,282
$ 135031 $ - $ 135,031

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Bond discount, net
Capital assets:
Capital assets, depreciable
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued compensation
Accrued payroll
Current portion of general obligation payable
Current portion of KDHE loan payable

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets):

Noncurrent liabilities:
General obligation bond payable
KDHE loan payable

Total noncurrent liabilities:

Total Liabilities
Net Position:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Business-Type Activities:

Enterprise Funds

Total
Sewer Solid Waste Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds

$ 771,991 % 96,338 $ 868,329
103,312 27,463 130,775
875,303 123,801 999,104
21,147 - 21,147
28,616,789 - 28,616,789
[10,567,628] - [10,567,628]
18,049,161 - 18,049,161
18,070,308 - 18,070,308
$ 18945611 $ 123,801 $ 19,069,412
$ 17924 % 19,783 § 37,707
97,045 - 97,045
12,531 - 12,531

5,311 - 5,311
493,927 - 493,927
229,118 - 229,118
855,856 19,783 875,639
4,823,590 - 4,823,590
4,834,523 - 4,834,523
9,658,113 - 9,658,113
$ 10513969 § 19,783 §$ 10,533,752
$ 7,689,150 $ - $ 7,689,150
742,492 104,018 846,510
$ 8431642 $ 104,018 $ 8,535,660

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Special assessments

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel
Contractual
Commodities
Capital outlay
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income [loss]

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]:
Interest on long term debt
Capital contribution
interest earned

Total nonoperating revenues [expenses]
Income [loss] before transfers

Transfers from [to] other funds
Transfers out
Total transfers

Change in net position
Net position, January 1

Net position, December 31

Business-Type Activities:

Enterprise Funds

Total
Sewer Solid Waste Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds
$ 1,216,584 $ 286,652 $ 1,503,236
90,268 - 90,268
1,306,852 286,652 1,593,504
78,290 - 78,290
204,748 233,305 438,053
28,866 2,595 31,461
18,799 - 18,799
788,550 - 788,550
1,119,253 235,900 1,355,153
187,599 50,752 238,351
[319,862] - [319,862]
118,181 - 118,181
2,686 520 3,206
[198,995] 520 [198,475]
[11,396] 51,272 39,876
[63,968] [43,288] [107,256]
[63,968] [43,288] [107,256]
[75,364] 7,984 [67,380]
8,507,006 96,034 8,603,040

$ 8431642 §

104,018 $ 8,535,660

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Transfers [in] out
Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions
Sale of assets
Bond issuance costs
Proceeds received from notes and loans
Principal paid on bonds, notes and loans
Interest expense and fiscal charges

Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest income
Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Investing Activities
Net Increase [Decrease] in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents, January 1

Cash and Equivalents, December 31

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Total
Sewer Sclid Waste  Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds
$ 1,290,195 $ 282,230 $ 1,672,425
[310,709] [216,117] [526,826]
979,486 66,113 1,045,599
[63,968] [43,288] [107,256]
[63,968] [43,288] [107,256]
118,181 - 118,181
918 - 918
[21,147] - [21,147]
4,548,816 - 4,548,818
[5,189,409] - [5,189,409]
[325,693] - [325,693]
[868,334] - [868,334]
2,686 520 3,208
2,686 520 3,208
49,870 23,345 73,215
722,121 72,993 795,114
$ 771,991 $ 96,338 § 868,329

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Total
Sewer Solid Waste  Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Net Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income [loss] $ 187,599 $ 50,752 § 238,351
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 788,550 - 788,550
Change in assets and liabilities:
[Increase] decrease in accounts receivable [16,657] [4,422] [21,079]
Increase [decrease] in accounts payable 17,171 19,783 36,954
Increase [decrease] in compensated absences/accrued payroll 2,823 - 2,823
Total Adjustments 791,887 15,361 807,248
Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Operating Activities $ 979486 3 66,113 $ 1,045,599

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Basehor, Kansas (the City), is a municipal corporation governed by an elected six-member
council. The City has no component units.

. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s governmental and business-type
activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service,
program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items
which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The City has no fiduciary funds.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and
judgments are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources.

Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements and shared
revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other grant requirements have been met.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net
total assets. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City has elected to report all funds as major and reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

The consolidated highway fund is used to account for road and highway projects.
The capital improvements reserve fund is used to account for capital improvement projects.
The employee benefit fund is used to account for employee benefits.

The bond and interest fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The sewer utility fund is used to account for the activities of the City's wastewater operations.

The solid waste utility fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s refuse operations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments (including certificates of deposit) with original maturities of six months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Kansas statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Treasury bills and notes, repurchase agreements, the
Kansas Municipal Investment Pool, and certain other types of federal and Kansas municipal obligations.

Investments are stated at fair market value.

2. Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or “advances toffrom other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles, if any.

Property taxes receivable - The determination of assessed valuations and the collections of property taxes
for all political subdivisions in the State of Kansas is the responsibility of the various counties. The office of
the County Appraiser annually determines assessed valuations on January 1 and the County Clerk spreads
the annual assessment on the tax rolls. The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities
within the county. In accordance with state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a
revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Property taxes are levied and liens
against property are placed on November 1 of the year prior to the fiscal year for which they are budgeted.
Payments are due November 1, becoming delinquent, with penalty, December 21. Payments of 50% are
accepted through December 20, with the second 50% then being due on or before May 10 of the following
year. This procedure eliminates the need to issue tax anticipation notes since funds will be on hand prior to
the beginning of each fiscal year. The City Treasurer draws down all available funds from the County
Treasurer's office in two-month intervals. Taxes remaining due and unpaid at February 15 and July 1 are
subject to collection procedures prescribed in state statutes.

Collection of current year property tax by the County Treasurer is not completed, apportioned or distributed to
the various subdivisions until the succeeding year, such procedure being in conformity with governing state
statutes. Consequently, current year property taxes receivable are not available as a resource that can be
used to finance the current year operations of the City and therefore are not susceptible to accrual. Accruals
of uncollected current year property taxes are offset by deferred revenue and are identical to the adopted
budget for 2013.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

3. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. Capital assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded at
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type is included in the capitalized value
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant and equipment of the City, are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50 - 100
Other equipment 5-20
Vehicles 6-10
Infrastructure 30-75

4, Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused paid time off. Paid time off
earned but unused at termination (if a two-week notice is given) is paid to the employees at their current rate
of pay.

Vested or accumuiated paid time off that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability in the government fund financial statements that
will pay it. Vested or accumulated paid time off of the business-type funds and government wide financial
statements are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

The General Fund and Sewer Utility Fund have been used in prior years to liquidate the liability for
compensated absences.

5. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

5. Long-term Obligations {Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

6. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates

7. Deferred Revenue

The City reports deferred revenue on its governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when
a potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current
period. In subsequent periods, when both recognition criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is
removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances.

8. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
position are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments.

9. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item that qualifies
for reporting in this category. The government funds report unavailable revenues from one source:
property taxes. The government-wide statements of net position report only the unavailable revenue for
property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amounts become available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

10. Fund Balance Reserves

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following classifications:
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Nonspendable fund balance includes
amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balance indicates that constraints have been placed on the
use of resources either by being externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed fund balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the city council. Assigned fund balances include amounts that are
constrained by the City management’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds
and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available restricted amounts is considered to be spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes
for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance is available, the following is the order in which
resources will be expended: committed, assigned and unassigned.

The following is the detail for fund balance classifications in the financial statements:

Major Governmental Funds

Capital Other Total
Consolidated Improvements  Employee Bond and  Governmental Governmental
General Highway Reserve Benefit interest Eunds Funds
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Debt retirement $ - % - % - 8 - $ 659,198 $ -8 659,198
Assigned for:
Street project construction - 1,965,576 - - - - 1,965,576
Capital improvements - - 1,424,267 - - 23,397 1,447,664
Employee benefits - - - 135,031 - - 135,031
Culture and recreation - - - - - 109,765 109,765
Equipment outlay - - - - - 342,263 342,263
Unassigned: 593,608 - - - - - 593,608
Total Fund Balances $593,608 $ 1,965,576 $ 1424267 $ 135031 $ 659,198 $ 475425 § 5253105
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the general fund, special
revenue funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), debt service funds and enterprise funds. The
statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating
budget:

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1st.

2. Publication in the local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the budget
on or before August 5th.

3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication of the notice of
hearing.

4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th.

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing
to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after publication the
hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time. The 2012 budget was
amended for the Bond and Interest, Sewer Utility and Special Parks and Recreation Funds.

The statutes permit management to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund.
However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the adopted budget of
expenditures of individual funds.

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the statutory basis of accounting, in which, revenues
are recognized when cash is received and expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable and
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments by the City for future payments and are supported by a
document evidencing the commitment, such as a purchase order or contract. All unencumbered
appropriations (legal budget expenditure authority) lapse at year-end.

A legal operating budget is not required for capital project funds and certain special revenue funds.
Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirements is controlled by
federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits established by the governing
body.

30



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
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Budgetary Information (Continued)
The actual data presented in the budgetary comparison statements differs from the data presented in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The

following is a summary of the effects on the ending fund balances caused by the difference in accounting
between the budgetary basis and GAAP.

Major Governmental Funds

Capital
Consolidated Improvements Employee Bond and Other Total
General Highway Reserve Benefit Interest Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Eund Fund Eund Funds Funds

GAAP FUND BALANCE
December 31, 2012 $ 593608 $ 1965576 $ 1,424,267 $ 135,031 § 659,198 $ 475425 $ 5,253,105

Unreserved fund balances not subject
to the Kansas budget law:

Special Police Fund - - - - - [542] [542]
Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund - - - - - [341,721] [341,721]
Glenwood Sewer Maintenance Fund - - - - - [19,684] [19,684]
Adjustments:
Municipal court receivable [48,027] - - - - - [48,027)
Other receivable [4,206] - - - - - [4,206]
Total deductions [52,233] - - - - [361,947] [414,180]
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE
December 31, 2012 $ 541375 $ 1965576 $ 1424267 $ 135031 § 659,188 § 113,478 3 4,838,925
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Budgetary Information (Continued)
Major Business-Type Funds

Solid
Sewer Waste Total
Utility Utility Business-Type
Fund Fund Funds
NET POSITION
December 31, 2012 $ 8431642 $ 104,018 § 8535660
Adjustments:
Capital assets, net [18,049,161] - [18,049,161]
Receivables [103,312] [27,463] [130,775]
Accrued interest 97,045 - 97,045
Accrued compensation 12,531 - 12,531
General obligation payable 5,317,517 - 5,317,517
KDHE loan payable 5,063,641 - 5,063,641
Total deductions [7,661,739] [27,463] {7,689,202]
BUDGETARY NET POSITION
December 31, 2012 $ 769,903 $ 76,555 § 846,458
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash is considered to be active funds by management and is invested according to K.S.A. 9-1401.
The statute requires that banks eligible to hold active funds have a main or branch bank in the county or an
adjoining county in which the City is located and the banks provide an acceptable rate for active funds.

Various City investments are considered to be idle funds by management and are invested according to
K.S.A. 12-1675. The statutes require that the City invest it's idle funds in only temporary notes of the City,
bank certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and if eligible banks do not offer an acceptable rate for
the funds: U.S. Treasury bills or notes or the Municipal Investment Pool (KMIP). Maturities of the above
investments may not exceed two years by statute.

Some of the City’s investments are of bond proceeds invested pursuant to K.S.A. 10-131. This statute allows
additional investment authority beyond that of K.S.A. 12-1675. Investments of bond proceeds may follow
K.S.A. 12-1675 or include other investments such as the KMIP, direct obligations of the US government or
any agency thereof, investment agreements with a financial institution the obligations of which at the time of
investment are rated in either of the three highest rating categories by Moody's investors service or Standard
and Poor's corporation, and various other investments as specified in K.S.A. 10-131.
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A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The City does not have a formal investment policy that further limits concentration of credit risk, interest rate,
or custodial credit risks beyond state statutes.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to
it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk require that the depository banks will maintain 100%
security in the form of FDIC coverage and pledged collateral according to K.S.A. 9-1402.

B. Receivables

Receivables at year end are as follows:

Employee Bond and Sewer Solid Waste
General Benefit Interest Utility Utility Total

Receivables:

Accounts $ - % - $ - $ 103312 $§ 27463 § 130,775

Taxes 993,230 372,926 71,298 - - 1,437,454

Municipal court 48,027 - - - - 48,027

Other 4,206 - - - - 4,206
Total $1,045463 $ 372926 § 71298 $ 103,312 § 27463 §$ 1620462
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012, was as follows:

Balance Balance
12/31/11 Additions Retirements 12/31/12
City governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 135838 §$ - 8 - $ 135,838
Construction in progress - 165,301 - 165,301
Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings, improvements, vehicles, and equipment 18,992,224 41,559 97,437 18,836,346
Total capital assets 19,128,062 206,860 97,437 19,237,485
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings, improvements, vehicles, and equipment 8,021,958 825,934 83,667 8,764,225
Total accumulated depreciation 8,021,958 825,934 83,667 8,764,225
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 11,106,104 $ [619,074] $ 13,770 $ 10,473,260
Business-type activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings, improvements, vehicles, and equipment $ 28,628,354 § - § 11,565 § 28,616,789
Total capital assets 28,628,354 - 11,565 28,616,789
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings, improvements, vehicles, and equipment 9,789,725 788,550 10,647 10,567,628
Total accumulated depreciation 9,789,725 788,550 10,647 10,567,628
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 18,838629 $ [788,550] $ 918 $ 18,049,161
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ill. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
C. Capital Assets (Continued)
The City’s depreciation expense was charged as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 11,899
Public safety 36,731
Public works 3,567
Culture and recreation 11,347
Infrastructure 762,390
Total depreciation expense $ 825,934
Business-type Activities:

Sewer utility $ 788,550
Total depreciation expense $ 788,550

D. Long-term Debt

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the following changes occurred in long term liabilities:

Government Fund Activities

Balance Restatement/ Balance

January 1, 2012 Additions Reductions December 31, 2012
General obligation bonds $ 3,477,200 $ 4,660,000 $ 275,900 $ 7,861,300
General obligation bonds premium - 137,067 - 137,067
Total general obligation bonds 3,477,200 4,797,067 275,900 7,998,367
Temporary notes 3,460,000 - 3,460,000 -
KDOT loan 1,326,222 - 1,326,222 -
Capital lease 56,300 - 6,300 50,000
$ 8,319,722 § 4,797,067 $ 5,068,422 $ 8,048,367

Enterprise Fund Activities
General obligation bonds $ 852,800 $ 4175000 $ 84,100 $ 4,943,700
General obligation bonds premium - 373,817 - 373,817
Total general obligation bonds 852,800 4,548,817 84,100 5,317,517
KDHE revolving loan 10,168,951 - 5,105,309 5,063,641
$ 11,021,751 § 4548817 § 5,189,409 § 10,381,158

General Obligation Bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general
government and proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. In
addition, general obligation bonds have been issued to refund other general obligation bonds.
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D. Long-term Debt (Continued)

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. General
obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Date of
Date of Final Original Outstanding
Issuance Maturity  Interest Rate Amount Amount
Governmental Activities
Improvements, Series 2004 01/15/04  09/01/19 3.25-4.35% $ 3,415000 $ 1,870,000
Improvements, Series 2005 08/15/05  09/01/25  3.65-5.25% 2,840,000 2,100,000

Refunding and improvements, Series  08/08/12 09/01/32  2.00-3.00% 9,345,884 9,345,884

$15600,884 § 13,315,884

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 950,544 $ 393,808 $ 1,344,352
2014 995,544 362,675 1,358,219
2015 1,125,544 336,605 1,462,149
2016 1,265,544 300,128 1,565,672
2017 1,315,544 258,978 1,574,522

2018-2022 4,367,721 705,293 5,073,014
2023-2027 2,017,721 267,515 2,285,236
2028-2032 1,277,721 79,583 1,357,304

Total $ 13,315,884 § 2,704,583 §$ 16,020,467

During 2012, the City issued $9,345,884 in general obligation refunding bonds with an interest rate of 1.7% to
refund $1,278,456 of a Kansas Department of Health and Environment revolving loan with an interest rate of
3.07%. As a result, the revolving loan is considered to be defeased and the liability for the defeased bonds
has been removed from the City’s financial statements. The transaction resulted in an economic gain of
$556,740 and a decrease of $614,727 in future debt payments.
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D. Long-term Debt (Continued)

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment and the City has entered into an agreement for an
additional loan. The City intends to make principal and interest payments on the loans from revenue derived
from wastewater and water charges to the consumer. The loan will be for $5,663,682 and calls for an
interest rate of 2.82%. This loan had an outstanding balance of $5,063,641 at December 31, 2012. The City
will retire this loan with semi-annual payments through September 2030. The following displays annual debt
service requirements to maturity for this KDHE loan for the full proceeds amount:

The following displays annual debt service requirements to maturity for this KDHE loan for the full proceeds
amount:

Year Ending State Agency
December 31 Loan
2013 $ 371,395
2014 371,395
2015 371,395
2016 371,395
2017 371,395
2018-2022 1,856,974
2023-2025 1,856,974
2026-2030 889,978

Total principal and interest 6,460,899
Less: interest 1,397,258

Total principal $ 5,063,641

Special Assessments. As provided by Kansas Statutes, projects financed in part by special assessments are
financed through general obligation bonds of the City and are retired from the bond and interest fund.
Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue in the appropriate project.
Special assessments received after the issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue in the bond and interest
fund. The special assessments receivable are not recorded as revenue when levied against the respective
property owners as such amounts are not available to finance current year operations. The special
assessment debt is a contingent liability of the City to the extent of property owner defaults, which have
historically been immaterial.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City carries commercial insurance for these risks of loss
including related lost revenue. No significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of the prior year
have occurred. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the last three years.

B. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by those
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of additional expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial.

The City is a party in various pending claims. Although the outcome of these pending claims is not presently

determinable, it is the opinion of management that resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C.

D.

Retirement Plans

All employees employed by the City are entitled to enroll at the City Council's discretion, in a Deferred
Compensation Plan, offered by Hartford or such other insurance company as may offer a plan approved by
the Kansas Legislature pursuant to K.S.A. 75-5522 et seq. and K.S.A. 75-5529 et seq. For an employee who
is employed full time, the City shall contribute to the Plan an amount as specified according to the current
maximum contribution to old age Social Security benefits. The payroll for employees covered by the Plan
was $558,364. Total gross payroll was $1,154,179. The contribution for the year ending December 31, 2012
was $8,625 from employees and $61,420 from employer representing 11% of covered payroll, respectively.

The City participates in the Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System (KP&F) which is part of a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan as provided by K.S.A. 74-4901, et seq. KP&F
provides retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits and death benefits. Kansas law
establishes and amends benefit provisions. KP&F issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing to
Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS); 611 South Kansas Avenue, Topeka, KS 66603.

K.S.A. 74-4975 establishes the KP&F member-employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The
employer collects and remits member-employee contributions according to the provisions of Section 414(h)
of the Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be determined
annually based on the results of an annual actuarial valuation. KP&F is funded on an actuarial reserve basis.
State law sets a limitation on annual increases in the employer contribution rates. The KP&F uniform
participating employer rate established for fiscal years beginning in 2012 is 17.26%. Employers participating
in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for past service costs, if any, which is determined
separately for each participating employer. The City contributions to KP&F for the years ending December
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $89,377, $73,019, and $66,374, respectively equal to the required
contribution for each year.

Interfund Transfers

A reconciliation of all operating transfers by fund type for 2012 follows:

In Out
Major Funds:
General $ 59,753 $ 69,518
Employee Benefit 47,502 -
Other Governmental Funds 19,536 -
Sewer Utility - 63,968
Solid Waste Utility - 43,288
Bond and Interest 49,983 -

$ 176,774 % 176,774

The City uses interfund transfers to share administrative costs between funds.
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Restricted Cash

in an agreement with the developer of the Falcon Lakes subdivision dated February 20, 2001, the City
agreed to restrict the use of the $2,405 per lot impact fee. This restriction limited the use of these funds to
improvements to the perimeter roads (Donochoo Road, Hollingsworth Road and 147" Street). Of the
$1,967,132 of cash in the Consolidated Highway Fund as of December 31, 2012, $68,989 was subject to
this restriction.

F. Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Plan Description. The City provides for a continuation of medical, pharmacy and dental insurance benefits
to eligible early retirees and their spouses. K.S.A. 12-5040 requires all local governmental entities in the
state that provide a group health care plan to make participation available to all retirees and dependents
until the retiree reaches the age of 65 years. No separate financial report is issued for the Plan.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan participants and the City are established and
amended by the City. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements. Plan participants contributed approximately 100% of the total premiums to the Plan, through
their required contribution of $359 per month for retiree-only coverage and $727 to $1,139, per month, for
retiree and dependent coverage.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
F. Postemployment Healthcare Plan (Continued)

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the Plan for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution $ 3,521
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 357
Adjustment to Annual Reqguired Contribution [642
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 3,236
Benefit payments -
Change in net OPEB obligation 3,236
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 8,931
Net OPEB obligation - end of year ) 12,167

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Annual
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net
Year OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31,2010 $ 2,973 § - $ 5832
December 31, 2011 3,099 - 8,931
December 31, 2012 3,236 - 12,167

Funding Status and Funding Progress. As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $11,407 and the actuarial value of
asset was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $11,407. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,020,641, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 1.1%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule
of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statement, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets (if any) are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan participants) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan participants to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the entry age normal actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return, which is the rate of the
employer's own investments as there are no plan assets and an annual healthcare cost trend of 11%
initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after six years. The UAAL is being amortized as a
level dollar over an open thirty-year period.
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Year ended December 31, 2012

Schedule of Funding Progress

UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered Percent of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date Assets (a) Liability (b) (b) - (a) (a/b) ©) (b-a)/(c)
1/1/2010 $ -3 11407 $ 11407 % - $ 1,020,641 1.1%
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Assigned
Total fund balance [deficit]

Total liabilities and fund balances

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements

CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2012

Special Capital

Revenue Projects Total
$ 452028 $ 23,955 $ 475983
$ 452,028 $ 23,955 $ 475,983
$ - $ 558 $ 558
- 558 558
452,028 23,397 475,425
452,028 23,397 475,425
$ 452,028 $ 23,955 $§ 475,983
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total

REVENUES:

Taxes $ 8482 § 1,544 § 10,026

Licenses, permits and fees 7,200 68,048 75,248

Use of money and property 1,410 1,966 3,376

Total revenues 17,092 71,558 88,650
EXPENDITURES:

Debt service

Principal - 3,460,000 3,460,000
Interest and other charges - 70,738 70,738

Capital outlay 77,703 106,126 183,829

Total expenditures 77,703 3,636,864 3,714 567

Excess [deficiency] of revenues

over [under] expenditures [60,611] [3,565,306] [3,625,917]
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]:

Sale of bonds - 3,410,000 3,410,000

Bond premium - 92,960 92,960

Transfers in 69,518 [49,982] 19,536

Total other financing sources [uses) 69,518 3,452,978 3,522 496
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources Over [Under]

Expenditures and Other [Uses] 8,907 [112,328] [103,421]
Fund balance - Beginning of year 443,121 135,725 578,846
Fund balance - End of year 3 452028 § 23397 §$ 475,425

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Assigned
Total fund balance [deficit]

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2012

Special Municipal
Parks and Equipment Special
Recreation Reserve Police Totals
3 109,765 $ 341,721 542 452,028
3 109,765 $ 341,721 542 452,028
$ - 3 - - -
109,765 341,721 542 452 028
109,765 341,721 542 452,028
3 109,765 $ 341,721 542 452,028

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special Municipal
Parks and Equipment Special
Recreation Reserve Police Totals

REVENUES:

Taxes $ 8,482 $ - % -3 8,482

Licenses, permits and fees 7,200 - - 7,200

Use of money and property 391 1,019 - 1,410

Total revenues 16,073 1,019 - 17,092
EXPENDITURES:

Capital outlay 27,616 50,087 - 77,703

Total expenditures 27,616 50,087 - 77,703

Excess [deficiency] of revenues

over [under] expenditures [11,543] [49,068] - [60,611]
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]:

Transfers in - 69,518 - 69,518

Total other financing sources [uses] - 69,518 - 69,518
Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources Over [Under]

Expenditures and Other [Uses] [11,543] 20,450 - 8,907
Fund balance - Beginning of year 121,308 321,271 542 443,121
Fund balance - End of year $ 109,765 $ 341,721 § 542 $§ 452,028

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
December 31, 2012

Cedar Basehor Glenwood
Lakes Town Center Wolf Creek Sewer
Maintenance Project Project Maintenance Totals
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 4271 % - $ - $ 19,684 $ 23,955
Total assets $ 4271 % - % - 3% 19,684 $ 23,955
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 558 $ -3 -3 - $ 558
Total liabilities 558 - - - 558
Fund balance:

Assigned 3,713 - - 19,684 23,397
Total fund balance [deficit] 3,713 - - 19,684 23,397
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 4271 § - % - $ 19,684 $ 23,855

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cedar Basehor Glenwood
Lakes Town Center Wolf Creek Sewer
Maintenance Project Project  Maintenance Totals

REVENUES:

Taxes $ -5 1,544 $ -5 -9 1,544

Licenses, permits and fees 31,000 - - 37,048 68,048

Use of money and property 55 1,842 - 69 1,966
Total revenues 31,0565 3,386 - 37,117 71,558
EXPENDITURES:

Debt service

Principal - 3,460,000 - - 3,460,000
Interest and other charges - 70,738 - - 70,738

Capital outlay 37,662 41,628 - 26,836 106,126
Total expenditures 37,662 3,572,366 - 26,836 3,636,864
Excess [deficiency] of revenues

over [under] expenditures [6,607] [3,568,980] - 10,281 [3,565,306]
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]

Sale of bonds - 3,410,000 - - 3,410,000

Bond premium - 92,960 - - 92,960

Transfer [out] - [3,442] [46,540] - [49,982]

Total other financing sources [uses] - 3,499,518 [46,540] - 3,452,978
Excess [deficiency] of revenues

and other sources over [under]

expenditures and other [uses] [6,607] [69,462] [46,540] 10,281 [112,328]
Fund balance - Beginning of year 10,320 69,462 46,540 9,403 135,725
Fund balance - End of year 3 3,713 % -3 - 3 10684 3 23,397

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
SPECIAL PARKS AND RECREATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP  to Budgetary Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis QOriginal Final [Negative]
Revenues:
Taxes $ 8482 § - $ 8482 $ 8896 $ 8896 $ [414]
Licenses, permits and fees 7,200 - 7,200 1,500 1,500 5,700
Use of money and property 391 - 391 250 250 141
Total Revenues 16,073 - 16,073 10,646 10,646 5,427
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 27,616 - 27,616 25,000 40,000 12,384
Total Expenditures 27,616 - 27,616 25,000 40,000 12,384

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues

Over [Under] Expenditures [11,543] - [11,543] $[14,354] § [29,354] § 17,811
Fund Balance, January 1 121,308 - 121,308
Fund Balance, December 31 $109,765 $ - $109,765

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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Revenues:
Licenses, permits and fees
Use of money and property
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
CEDAR LAKES MAINTENANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues

Over [Under] Expenditures
Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary Budgetary  Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Qriginal Final [Negative]
$ 31,000 §$ - $ 31,000 $ 31,000 $ 31,000 $ -
55 - 55 20 20 35
31,055 - 31,055 31,020 31,020 35
37,662 - 37,662 40,000 40,000 2,338
37,662 - 37,662 40,000 40,000 2,338
[6,607] - [6,607) $ [8980] $ [8980] § 2,373
10,320 - 10,320
$§ 3713 § - § 3713

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

BOND AND INTEREST FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Special assessments
Use of money and property

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal
interest
Total Expenditures

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
Over [Under] Expenditures

Other Financing Sources [Uses}:
Sale of bonds
Bond premium
Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources [Uses}

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
and Other Sources Over [Under]
Expenditures and Other [Uses]

Fund Balances, January 1

Fund Balances, December 31

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Qriginal Final Negative]
$ 123,686 $ - $ 12368 $ 119,916 $ 119,916 § 3,770
14,278 - 14,278 - - 14,278
704,913 - 704,913 527,000 527,000 177,913
2,604 - 2,604 1,000 1,000 1,604
845,481 - 845,481 647,916 647,916 197,565
1,602,122  [1,278,456] 323,666 702,234 1,992,995 1,669,329
333,145 [15,651] 317,494 - - [317,494]
1,935,267  [1,294,107] 641,160 702,234 1,992,995 1,351,835
[1,089,786] 1,294,107 204,321 [64,318] [1,345,079] 1,549,400
1,250,000  [1,250,000] - - 1,250,000 [1,250,000]
44,107 [44,107] - - 40,761 [40,761]
49,983 - 49,983 - - 49,983
1,344,090 [1,294,107] 49,983 - 1,290,761 [1,240,778]
254,304 - 254304 $ [54,318] $ [54,318] $ 308,622
404,894 - 404,894
$ 659,198 § - $ 659,198

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements

52



CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS
SEWER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Original Final [Negative]
Revenues
Charges for services $ 1,216,584 % [16,657] $ 1,199,927 $ 1,170,000 3% 1,170,000 % 29,927
Special assessments 90,268 - 90,268 72,162 72,162 18,108
Use of money and property 2,686 - 2,686 1,000 1.000 1.686
Total revenues 1,309,538 [16,657] 1,292,881 1,243,162 1,243,162 49,719
Expenditures
Personnel 78,290 [1,452] 76,838 77,500 77,500 662
Contractual 204,748 - 204,748 172,512 172,512 [32,236]
Commodities 28,866 - 28,866 25,750 25,750 [3,118)
Capital outlay 18,799 - 18,799 128,500 128,500 109,701
Depreciation 788,550 [788,550] - - - -
Total expenditures 1,119,253 [790,002) 329,251 404,262 404,262 75,011
Operating income [loss] 190,285 773,345 963,630 838,900 838,900 124,730
Other Financing Sources [Uses]:
Debt principal - [640,593] [640,593] [911,395] [5,439,017] 4,798,424
Debt interest and fees [319,862] [5,831] [325,693] - - [325,698]
Bond proceeds - - - - 4,527,622 [4,527,622]
Sale of asset - 918 918 - - 918
Capital contribution 118,181 - 118,181 - - 118,181
Transfers out [63,968] - [63,968] [63,968] [63,968] -
Total Other Financing Sources [Uses] [265,649] [645,506] [911,155] [975,363] [975,363] 64,208
Change in net position [75,364] 127,839 52475 $ [136,463] $ [136,463] § 188,938
Net position, January 1 8,607,006 [7,789,578] 717,428
Net position, December 31 $ 8431642 § [7,661,739] § 769,903

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS

SOLID WASTE UTILITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Adjustments Final Budget
GAAP to Budgetary Budgetary Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis Basis Basis Original Final Negative
Revenues
Charges for services $ 286,652 $ [4,422] $ 282,230 $ 279,130 $ 279,130 § 3,100
Use of money and property 520 - 520 103 103 417
Total revenues 287,172 [4,422] 282,750 279,233 279,233 3,517
Expenditures
Contractual 233,305 - 233,305 239,184 239,184 5,879
Commodities 2,595 - 2,595 2,298 2,298 [297]
Total expenditures 235,900 - 235,900 241,482 241,482 5,682
Operating income [loss] 51,272 [4,422] 46,850 37,751 37,751 9,099
Other Financing Sources [Uses]:

Transfer [out] [43,288] - [43,288] [39,415] [39,415] [3,873]
Total Other Financing Sources [Uses] [43,288] - [43,288] [39,415] [39,415] [3,873]
Change in net position 7,984 [4,422] 3562 $ [1664] 3§ [1664] § 5,228
Net position, January 1 96,034 [23,041] 72,993
Net position, December 31 $ 104,018 $ [27,463] $ 76,555

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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City of Basehor

2014 Operating Budget Preparation Calendar

Date

Scheduling Item

April 12,2013

City Council Planning Retreat

Mid-May, 2013

Budget Documents Provided to the Department Heads

June §, 2013

DEADLINE: Department Budget Requests Due to Finance Director

Second Week in June

Interim City Administrator Budget Reviews with Department Heads

By July 1, 2013

Receive Assessed Valuation from County Clerk

The County Clerk shall include such assessed valuations in the applicable taxing districts with all
other assessed valuations in those taxing districts and on or before July 1 notify the appropriate
officials of each taxing district within the county of the assessed valuation estimates to be utilized
in the preparation of budgets for ad valorem tax purposes (K.S.A. 79-5a27).

July 1, 2013

2013 City Council Budget Work Session

July 15, 2013

Budget Discussion at Regular Meeting: Set Budget Public Hearing
Date as August 5, 2013

July 16, 2013

Send Notice of Public Hearing to Basehor Sentinel

The governing body shall give at least 10 days’ notice of the time and place of the meeting by
publication in a weekly or daily newspaper of the county having a general circulation therein
(K.S.A. 79-2929).

August 5, 2013

(Prior to Work Session) Special Regular Meeting - Conduct Public
Hearing: Approve 2013 Proposed Budget

The hearing herein required to be held upon all budgets by all taxing subdivisions or
municipalities of the state shall be held not less than ten (10) days prior to the date on which
they shall certify their annual levies to the county clerk as required by law (K.S.A. 79-2933).

By August 25, 2013

Submit Approved 2013 Budget to Leavenworth County Clerk

Each year the governing body of any city, the trustees of any township, the board of education of
any school district and the governing bodies of all other taxing subdivisions shall certify, on or
before August 25, to the proper county clerk the amount of ad valorem tax to be levied (K.S.A.
79-1801).

Where action has been taken under any statute to increase the amount of tax to be levied
authorized by law, a statement showinig the increased amount or tax levy rate voted, or a copy of
the charter resolutiori or ordinance making the change, shall be attached to the budget each year
the change is in effect (K.S.A. 79-2930).




City of Basehor
Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Agenda Item No. 3

Topic: Preliminary Plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms.

Action Requested: Consider approving a preliminary plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek
Farms.

Narrative:
The preliminary plat is a replat of Block 6 within Honeycreek Farms. The plat is located

along Pinehurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive. The proposed plat
replaces 16 patio homes with 15 single-family lots.

May 7, 2013, the Planning Commission conducted a public hear and approved (6-0) two
(2) variances and the preliminary plat with three (3) conditions.

Presented by:
Mitch Pleak, City Engineer

Administration Recommendation:
Staff recommends approving the preliminary plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms with
the following conditions:
1. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.
2. Addnote: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5’ and rear yard setback is 30°.
3. Addnote: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be
1,200 S.F. (class “F”).

Committee Recommendation:

Attachments:
5.28.13 Staff Report (8 pages)

Projector needed for this item?
No




Staff Report

Date: May 28, 2013

Subject: Consider the Preliminary Plat for Block 6, Honeycreek Farms, submitted by
Peoples Bank on the following described property:

ALL OF LOT 1, BLOCK 6, HONEY CREEK FARMS, A SUBDIVISION IN THE
CITY OF BASEHOR, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS ALSO BEING IN THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 11 SOUTH, RANGE 22
EAST.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Applicant: Peoples Bank
Owner: Peoples Bank

Address: P.O. Box 8330
Lawrence, KS 66049

SITE INFORMATION

Location: Pinehurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive.
Current Zoning: ‘PR” Planned Residential District.

STAFF ANALYSIS

Background
The proposed plat is a replat of Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms and consists of 3.6 acres.

Honeycreek Farms Plat was approved in May of 2004. The existing development plan identifies
Block 6 having 16 patio homes with a density of 4.4 units per acre or 1 unit per 9,821 square feet.
Patio homes generally are a higher density than single-family homes. The existing development
plan also has a minimum ground floor area classification of 1,200 S.F.

The proposed plat includes 15 single-family homes with the minimum ground floor area
classification of 1,200 S.F., which is equal to the entire Honeycreek Farms Plat. The proposed
average lot size is 10,475 square feet. The proposed plat will not change any lots outside of Block
6 in the Honeycreek Farms Plat.

Surrounding Property

The proposed replat is located on Pinehurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive.
The current zoning is Planned Residential. “CP-2" General Business District and established
townhomes are located to the north. Single-family homes are established toward the west, south,
and east. The subject block is currently vacant. To date Honeycreek Farms includes single-family
homes and townhomes.




Adjacent Property

Zoning Use
North: “Cp-2” General Business District
South: “PR” Planned Residential
East: “PR” Planned Residential
West: “PR” Planned Residential

Traffic Impact
Access to the replat is thru Pinehurst Drive. The proposed plat will not have any impact to
Pinehurst Drive.

Stormwater Management
Stormwater Management facilities will not be changed with the approval of the subject plat.

Utilities
No new utilities will be proposed with the subject plat.

Comprehensive Plan/Zoning

The property is zoned “PR” Planned Residential District. The original use for the Block 6 is for
patio homes. Patio homes can be considered to be higher density single-family dwellings. To the
north of Block 6 includes vacant commercial property and established townhomes. Single-family
homes are established toward the west, south, and east of Block 6.

Preliminary Plat Contents

a.
1. The name of the proposed subdivision. Provided within the submitted plat.
2. Location of the subdivision by reference to a section corner. Provided within the
submitted plat.
3. The name(s) and address(s) of the owner(s)/developer(s) and the licensed land
surveyor who prepared the plot. Provided within the submitted plat.
4. North arrow. Provided within the submitted plat.
5. Date prepared and scale of the drawing. Provided within the submitted plat.
6. The legal description of the property. Provided within the submitted plat.
b.

1. All of the land to be platted as well as all platted or unplatted adjacent properties
within 1,000 feet shall be shown. This is not shown.

2. Existing contours with the contour intervals not more than 2 feet. This is not provided
due to the plat being already platted with stormwater infrastructure in place.

3. The location, width, and names of all existing platted or private ways within or

adjacent to the tract, together with easements, railroad and utility right-of-way, parks

and other significant features such as city limit lines and survey monuments. This is

provided.

Environmental features. The proposed plat is not within the 100-yr flood plain.

All airports, sanitary landfills, feedlots, or other similar uses located within two miles

of the proposed plat shall be shown on a vicinity map. This is not shown.

o~

1. Layout and names of streets with general dimensions and appropriate grades shall
be shown. This is provided.



2.

CECRS

Intended layout, numbers and dimensions of lots. The existing development plan for
Block 6 includes a density of 4.4 unity per acre or 1 unit per 9,821 square feet. The
intention of Block 6 was to be a higher density single-family dwellings. Such density can be
associated with “R-2” Two-Family Residential District. R-2 allows for higher density single-
family dwellings with a maximum of 7 dwelling units per acre and minimum lot area of
6,000 square feet per dwelling unit. The proposed plat includes lot sizes from 7,442.5
square feet to 14,717.7 square feet. The proposed average lot size is 10,475 square feet.
The proposed plat is less dense than the existing planned Block 6.

The proposed plat includes setbacks:

e Rear - 30
e Side-7.5
e Front-25
The existing plat established the following setbacks:
e Rear-30
e Side - 10
e Front-2%

The proposed side yard setback of 7.5’ does not meet the minimum side yard setback of
10’. 7.5’ side yard setbacks are common with other plats within the City.

The minimum lot widths per R-2 zoning regulations are 80’ for interior lots and 95’ for
corner lots. The proposed plat has an average interior lot width of 64’ and a corner lot
width of 100", Lot widths below 80" are common with other plats within the City.

Parcels of land intended to be dedicated or reserved for parks, schools, or other
public uses, or to be reserved for the use of property owners with the subdivision.
This is provided within the submitted plat.

Location and type of utilities to be installed. Utilities are already constructed.

Utility and other easements indicating width and purpose. This is provided.

A statement or other indication of phasing of the development and an appropriate
timetable if applicable. Not applicable.

Vicinity sketch with indicates the relationship between the proposed subdivision
and surrounding properties within 1,000 feet, showing streets and other features.
This is not provided.

. The names and addresses of all owners of property within 1,000 feet of the proposed

platted area. The applicant may submit the same list of owners of property within
1,000 feet submitted for the zoning application. This has been submitted by the
applicant.

For subdivisions proposed to contain single family development, the minimum
dwelling size shall be met. Applicant shall detail the minimum ground floor area and
corresponding classification for the replat to be 1,200 S.F. (class “F").



Recommendation by Planning Staff
May 7, 2013, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and considered the preliminary
plat. The preliminary plat included the approval of the following variances:

1. Side yard setback of 7.5’

2. Lot widths as proposed.

With approval of the variances, the Planning Commission approved (6-0) the preliminary plat with
the following conditions:
1. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.
2. Add note: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5’ and rear yard setback is 30’.
3. Add note: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be 1,200 S.F.
(class “F").

Staff recommends approving the preliminary plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms with the
following conditions:
1. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.
2. Add note: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5’ and rear yard setback is 30'.
3. Add note: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be 1,200 S.F.
(class “F").
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Affidavit in Proof of Publication

STATE OF KANSAS
Leavenworth County

Eric Moore of the Legal Dept. of the Baschor Sentinel being
first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That this weekly newspaper printed in the State of Kansas. and
published in and of general circulation in Leavenworth
County, Kansas, with a general paid circulation on a weekly
basis in Leavenworth County, Kansas, and that said newspaper
is not a trade, religious or fraternal publication, and which
newspaper has been admitted to the mails as periodicals class
matter in said County, and that a notice of which is hereto
attached, was published in the regular and entire issue of the
Basehor Sentinel

Said newspaper is published weekly 52 weeks a year; has been
so published continuously and uninterruptedly in said county
and state for a period of more than one year prior to the first
publication of said notice and been admitted at the post office
of Basehor in said County as second class matter.

That the attached notice is a true copy thercof and was
published in the regular and entive issue of said newspaper for
1 consecutive weeks the first publication thereof being made as
aforesaid on 04/11/2013 with publications being made on the
following dates:

04/1172013

5 A, -
I ra /./ g t"“g e

Sl

Notary Public

My Appointment expires: March 15, 2015

Notary And Affidavit $0.00
Additional Copies $0.00
Publication Charges $33.00

$33.00
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{(Published in the Basehor Sentinel, Thursday, April11,2013)

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
C, F BASEHOR

ING COMMISSION.

Natice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the City of Basehor, Kansas
will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, May 7, 2013 at 7:00 PM, in the meeting room of
City Hall, lacated at 2620 N. 155th Street, Basehor, Kansas to consider Honey Creek
Farms Replat submitted by Peoples Bank., The proposed plat is located on the south
side 0f US-24/40 between 170th Street and 166th Street. The property description is:

All of Lot 1, Block 6, Honey Creek Farms, a subdivision in the City of Basehor, Leaven-
worth County, Kansas also beginning in the Northeast Quarter of Section 8, Township
11 South, Range 22 East.

All persons who desire to comment for or against said application are invited to ap-
pear at the time and place mentioned above, Copies of the appliication and full legal
description are available for review during normal business hours at Basehor City Hall.
Questions about the application may be directed to Mitch Pleak, City Engineer at
913-724-1370.

PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS



City of Basehor
Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Agenda Item No. 4

Topic: Final Plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms.

Action Requested: Consider approving a final plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms.

Narrative:
The final plat is a replat of Block 6 within Honeycreek Farms. The plat is located along

Pinchurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive. The proposed plat replaces
16 patio homes with 15 single-family lots.

May 7, 2013, the Planning Commission approved (6-0) the final plat with six (6)
conditions.

Presented by:
Mitch Pleak, City Engineer

Administration Recommendation:
Staff recommends approving the final plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms with the
following conditions:
1. City Council approves the preliminary plat.
2. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.
3. Add note: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5” and rear yard setback is 30°.
4. Add note: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be
1,200 S.F. (class “F”).
5. Title insurance certification shall be submitted by the applicant and verified by the
City Clerk.
6. Certification by the County Treasurer showing that all due or unpaid taxes have
been paid in full.

Committee Recommendation:

Attachments:
5.28.13 Staff Report (6 pages)

Projector needed for this item?
No




Staff Report

Date: May 28, 2013

Subject: Consider the Final Plat for Block 6, Honeycreek Farms, submitted by Peoples
Bank on the following described property:

ALL OF LOT 1, BLOCK 6, HONEY CREEK FARMS, A SUBDIVISION IN THE
CITY OF BASEHOR, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS ALSO BEING IN THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 11 SOUTH, RANGE 22
EAST.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Applicant: Peoples Bank
Owner: Peoples Bank

Address: P.O. Box 8330
Lawrence, KS 66049

SITE INFORMATION

Location: Pinehurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive.
Current Zoning: ‘PR" Planned Residential District.

STAFF ANALYSIS

Background
The proposed plat is a replat of Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms and consists of 3.6 acres.

Honeycreek Farms Plat was approved in May of 2004. The existing development plan identifies
Block 6 having 16 patio homes with a density of 4.4 units per acre or 1 unit per 9,821 square feet.
Patio homes generally are a higher density than single-family homes. The existing development
plan also has a minimum ground floor area classification of 1,200 S.F.

The proposed plat includes 15 single-family homes with the minimum ground floor area
classification of 1,200 S.F., which is equal to the entire Honeycreek Farms Plat. The proposed
average lot size is 10,475 square feet. The proposed plat will not change any lots outside of Block
6 in the Honeycreek Farms Plat.

Surrounding Property

The proposed replat is located on Pinehurst Drive between Sheehan Road and Freeman Drive.
The current zoning is Planned Residential. “CP-2" General Business District and established
townhomes are located to the north. The subject block is currently vacant. To date Honeycreek
Farms includes single-family homes and townhomes.




Adjacent Property

Zoning Use
North: “Cp-2” General Business District
South: “PR” Planned Residential
East: “PR” Planned Residential
West: “PR” Planned Residential

Traffic Impact
Access to the replat is thru Pinehurst Drive. The proposed plat will not have any impact to
Pinehurst Drive.

Stormwater Management
Stormwater Management facilities will not be changed with the approval of the subject plat.

Utilities
No new utilities will be proposed with the subject plat.

Transportation Excise Tax
Since the existing plat was annexed, $1,747.48 was applied to all new construction permits per lot.
The excise tax of $1,747.48 per lot will continue with the proposed plat.

Park Fees
Since the existing plat was annexed, $200 per residential unit was applied to all new construction
permits per lot. The park fee of $200 per lot will continue with the proposed plat.

Subdivision Regulation Requirements:
The items to be included on the final plat per the Subdivision Regulations requirements:

1. The lines and names of all proposed streets or other ways or easements, and other
open spaces intended to be dedicated for public use or granted for use of
inhabitants of the subdivision. Provided within the submitted plat.

2. Lines and names of all adjoining streets within 200 feet. This is shown within the
submitted plat.

3. Metes and bounds describing the plat and the contents within the plat associated
with any lots, easements, and tracts of lands. This information shall be represented
in a way that any lot line can be located in the field. This is provided within in the
submitted.

4. The location of all building setback lines. Applicant shall provide the minimum side yard

and rear yard setbacks.

Suitable primary control points. This is provided within the submitted plat.

Location and elevation of a permanent benchmark. This is provided within the

submitted plat.

7. The location of all permanent monuments with the distances and bearings plainly
marked. This is provided within the submitted plat.

8. Date of preparation, title, north point, and scale shall be included with the plat. This
is provided within the submitted plat.

9. Error of Closure. The perimeter of the plat is under 10,000 feet. Per the subdivision
regulations the error allowed is 1 ft in 10,000 ft. The error of closure for the plat is 1 ft in

665,071 ft, which is adequate.

o o



10.

11.

12.
13.

14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

19.
20.
21.

22.
23.

24,

Identification system for all lots and blocks, and the area in square feet of each lot.
This is provided within the submitted plat.

Certification of the land surveyor preparing the plat, seal, and signature. This is
provided within the submitted plat.

Acknowledgement of a notary. This is provided within the submitted plat.

A certification of the Planning Commission showing its approval of the plat. This is
provided within the submitted plat.

The approval of the City Council. Action has not been taken.

The certificate of the Register of Deeds. This is provided.

The title insurance certification showing that the proposed sub divider owns all the
property within the plat and that it is free from encumbrances and liens. The
applicant has yet to submit the title insurance certification.

Statement by the owner dedicating streets, rights-of-way, and sites for public use.
This is provided.

Such other certificates, affidavits, endorsements, or dedication as may be required
by the Planning Commission in the enforcement of these Regulations. Action has not
been taken by the Planning Commission.

Purpose for which sites, other than residential iots, are dedicated or reserved. This
is provided.

Proper margins and lettering on the sheet that contains the plat. Margins and lettering
are properly shown,

Legal description of the subdivision. This was submitted with the plat.

Public improvement plans associated with the final plat. Not applicable.

Certification by the County Treasurer showing that all due or unpaid taxes have been
paid in full. Applicant has yet to submit certification by the County showing that all due or
unpaid taxes have been paid in full.

Subdivision Improvements Agreement. Not applicable.

Recommendation by Planning Staff

May 7,

1.
2
3.
4
5.

6.

2013, the Planning Commission approved (6-0) the final plat with the following conditions:
City Council approves the preliminary plat.

. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.

Add note: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5’ and rear yard setback is 30".

. Add note: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be 1,200 S.F.

(class “F").

Title insurance certification shall be submitted by the applicant and verified by the City
Clerk.

Certification by the County Treasurer showing that all due or unpaid taxes have been paid
in full.

Staff recommends approving the final plat for Block 6 of Honeycreek Farms with the following
conditions:

1.
2
3.
4

5.

City Council approves the preliminary plat.

. Add note: No driveway shall abut Pinehurst Drive.

Add note: Minimum side yard setback is 7.5’ and rear yard setback is 30".

. Add note: Minimum ground floor area and corresponding classification shall be 1,200 S.F.

(class “F").
Title insurance certification shall be submitted by the applicant and verified by the City
Clerk.



6. Certification by the County Treasurer showing that all due or unpaid taxes have been paid
in full.
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City of Basehor
Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Agenda Item No. 5

Topic: Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2

Action Requested: The City of Basehor wishes to terminate our
participation in the NRP No. 2 prior to the expiration date of December 31,
2014 by providing 30 days written notice as required per agreement.

Narrative: On November 19, 2012, council approved to amend NRP No. 2
extending the expiration date from December 31, 2012 to December 31,
2014. At this time the City of Basehor wishes to terminate our participation
in the NRP No. 2 effective July 30, 2013 by providing 30 days written notice
per agreement procedures.

Presented by: Lloyd Martley, Interim City Administrator

Administration Recommendation: Approve written request for
termination of our participation in NRP No. 2 effective July 17, 2013.

Committee Recommendation: N/A

Attachments: Resolution 2012-23

Projector needed for this item?

No




RESOLUTION NO. 2013-12

A RESOLUTION WITHDRAWING THE CITY OF BASEHOR FROM PARTICIPATION IN
BASEHOR NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION PLAN NO. 2

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2009, the City of Basehor, Kansas adopted Resolution No. 2009-
15 which approved Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2012, Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2 was extended to
an expiration date of December 31, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to withdraw from participation in Neighborhood Revitalization Plan
No. 2 by giving 30 days notice as required by Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
BASEHOR, KANSAS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That by adopting this resolution, the City of Basehor has provided 30 days notice of
its withdrawal from Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2, and hereby withdraws from
Neighborhood Revitalization Plan No. 2, effective July 30, 2013.

Section 2. That this resolution shall become effective upon passage.

PASSED by the Governing Body this  day of June, 2013.

APPROVED by the Mayor this ___ day of June, 2013.

[SEAL]

David K. Breuer, Mayor

ATTEST:

Corey Swisher, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney

{32233 /65827;451916. }



City of Basehor
Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Agenda Item No. 6

Topic: Fireworks stand permit fee

Action Requested: Waive the $500.00 permit fee established by Ord. 549

Narrative: Ordinance #549, established a permit fee of $500.00 for having
a fireworks stand within the city limits. Under section 7-305 the ordinance
states that permit fees for non-profit organizations may be waived at the
discretion of and upon approval of the governing body. The Basehor
Linwood High School Marching Band is a non-profit organization and is
planning on using the money made from the sale of the fireworks to
purchase uniforms, maintain their trailer and for future travel. The band
group is asking for council’s approval to waive the permit fee of $500.00

Presented by: Lloyd Martley, Interim City Administrator

Administration Recommendation: Councils decision

Committee Recommendation: N/A

Attachments: Ord. #549

Projector needed for this item?

No
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(First published in Basehor Sentinel February 26, 2009)
ORDINANCE NO. 549

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER VII, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 7-305
CONCERNING FIREWORKS, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF BASEHOR, KANSAS.
SAID SECTIONS CONCERNING FIREWORKS SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

Be it ordained by the Governing Body of the City of Basehor, Kansas:

Section 1. That Article 3 Section 7-305 shall be repealed and the following new Section
7-305 shall be inserted as adopted:

7-305. PERMIT FOR SALE OF FIREWORKS REQUIRED; FEE; ISSUANCE. (a) It
shall be unlawful for any person to sell, display for sell, offer to sell or give away
any type of fireworks within the city without first paying a fee of $500.00 per
establishment or premises to the city clerk and applying for and securing a permit
therefore on or before June 25" of the permit year. The application shall be
approved by the fire chief before the license shall be issued. Permit fees for non-
profit organizations may be waived at the discretion of and upon approval of the
governing body.

(b)  No permit shall be issued for any location where retail sales are not
permitted under the zoning laws. Prior to the issuance of the permit, an inspection
will be made of the applicant's facility for compliance with this chapter and other
pertinent laws, and no permit shall be issued for any premises not in compliance
with such laws. Upon qualifying for the permit, the permittee shall prominently
display the permit and the hours of discharge and the penalties for non compliance
at the establishment or premises where fireworks are to be sold or displayed for
sale. The permit fee shall not be refundable upon failure to qualify for the permit or
withdrawal or cancellation of the application or permit.

(c) No permit shall be approved unless the applicant furnished a
certificate of an occurrence, and not claims made, public liability insurance
policy for the display in a minimum amount of $1,000,000, written by an
insurance carrier licensed to do business in Kansas, conditioned as being
non-cancelable except by giving 10-days advance written notice to the City
Clerk.

(d) No permit shall be approved unless the applicant furnished a tax
clearance from the Department of Revenue ensuring prior year sales taxes if
owed are paid.

Section 2. REPEAL. To the extent any other Ordinance of the City of Basehor which
is inconsistent herewith, the same is repealed.

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the Basehor Sentinel, the official
newspaper of the City of Basehor, Kansas.
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PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
BASEHOR, KANSAS, ON THIS _17th DAY OF February , 2009.

V)
‘ Cﬁ {i{jyiw /(?L&w A,_:;\\

Chris Garcia, Mayor

Attest:

»%i‘ﬁ\f%?v*@hfk\/élki ) \y«x‘i/

Mary A. Mogle City Clerk =

Approved as to content:

=
[ w
LA L

Patrick ff%eavey, (?ity Attorney
\
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